
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 

AGENDA 
 

Virtual Meeting – Zoom 
(Winnebago County YouTube Live) 

 
Tuesday, December 22, 2020 

6:00 p.m.  
 

1. Call to Order  .............................................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance ...................................... Board Member Dorothy Redd 
 
3. Agenda Announcements ............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ............................................................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Awards – None  
B. Presentations – None   
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – None  

 
6. Approval of Minutes ................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of November 19 and 24, 2020 minutes 
B. Layover of December 7 and 10, 2020 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda .......................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report 
B. Auditor’s Report – approval of bills 
C. Administrator Report – leaves of absences  
D. Other Administrative Reports 

 
8. Appointments 

A. None 
 

9. Reports of Standing Committees ................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee ................................................... Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing County Contribution for State’s Attorneys Appellate 

Prosecutor’s Program 
 



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee ................................... Jas Bilich, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
D. Operations & Administrative Committee ............... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Voya Financial for 

Stop Loss Specific and Aggregate Coverage on the Self-Insured Co-Pay/POS and High 
Deductible Medical Plans 

 
E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. (20-043) Resolution Authorizing the Approval of a Change in Plans to Reconcile Bid 

Quantities with As-built Quantities for the Resurfacing of Kishwaukee Road (CH 3) from 
Meridian Road to Beltline Road/Airport Drive (Section 20-00000-02-GM) 
Cost:  $129,110.27 (deduction)      C.B. District:  9 

3. (20-044) Resolution Authorizing the Approval of a Change in Plans to Reconcile Bid 
Quantities with As-Built Quantities for the Resurfacing of Montague Road (CH 27) from 
Kennedy Hill Road to Meridian Road (Section 20-00000-03-GM) 
Cost:  $23,270.70 (deduction)     C.B. District:  1 & 9 

4. (20-045) Resolution Authorizing the Approval of a Change in Plans to Reconcile Bid 
Quantities with As-Built Quantities for Pavement Repairs on Guilford Road (CH 86) East 
of Mulford Road (Section 20-00000-08-GM) 
Cost:  $50,039.11 (addition)     C.B. District:  8 & 16 

5. (20-046) Resolution Authorizing the Supplemental Appropriation of MFT Funds for the 
Maintenance of County Highways (Section 20-00000-00-GM) 
Cost:  $595,000       C.B. District:  County Wide 

6. (20-047) Resolution Declaring as Surplus Highway Department Vehicles and Equipment 
and Authorizing Sale 
Cost:  $n/a        C.B. District:  County Wide 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee…………………………….Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
10. Unfinished Business…………………………….…………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
11. New Business…………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
12. Announcements & Communications .................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 

A. Correspondence (see packet)  
 
13.  Adjournment – Next Meeting…………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
Next Meeting:  Thursday, January 14, 2021 



 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 































 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 











 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 





Sponsored by:  Jaime Salgado, Chairman             
 County Board Meeting 

December 22, 2020 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2020 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING COUNTY CONTRIBUTION FOR 
STATE’S ATTORNEYS APPELLATE PROSECUTOR’S PROGRAM 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor was created 
to provide services to State’s Attorneys in Counties containing fewer than 3,000,000 
inhabitants; and 

 
WHEREAS, the powers and duties of the Office of the State’s Attorneys 

Appellate Prosecutor are defined and enumerated in the “State’s Attorneys Appellate 
Prosecutor’s Act,” 725 ILCS 210/1, et seq. as amended; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Illinois General Assembly appropriates monies for the ordinary 

and contingent expenses of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor, one-
third from the State’s Appellate Prosecutor’s County Fund and two-thirds from the 
General Revenue Fund, provided that such funding receives approval and support from 
the respective Counties eligible to apply; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor shall 

administer the operation of the appellate offices so as to insure that all participating 
State’s Attorneys continue to have final authority in preparation, filing, and arguing of all 
appellate briefs and any trial assistance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County 
of Winnebago, in regular session, this 22nd day of December, 2020, does hereby support 
the continued operation of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor and 
designates the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor as its Agent to 
administer the operation of the appellate offices and process said appellate court cases for 
the County. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the attorneys employed by the Office of 
the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor are hereby authorized to act as Assistant 
State’s Attorneys on behalf of the State’s Attorney of the County of Winnebago in the 
appeal of all cases, when requested to do so by the State’s Attorney, and with the advice 



 
 

and consent of the State’s Attorney prepare, file, and argue appellate briefs for those 
cases; and also, as may be requested by the State’s Attorney, to assist in the prosecution 
of cases under the Illinois Controlled Substances Act, the Cannabis Control Act, the Drug 
Asset Forfeiture Procedure Act and the Narcotics Profit Forfeiture Act.  Such attorneys 
are further authorized to assist the State’s Attorney in the State’s Attorneys duties under 
the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act, including negotiations thereunder, as well as in 
the trial and appeal of tax objections. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Office of the State’s Attorneys 

Appellate Prosecutor will offer Continuing Legal Education training programs to the 
State’s Attorneys and Assistant State’s Attorneys.   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the attorneys employed by the Office of 

the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor may also assist the State’s Attorney of the 
County of Winnebago in the discharge of the State’s Attorneys duties in the prosecution 
and trial of other cases, and may act as Special Prosecutor if duly appointed to do so by a 
court have jurisdiction. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that if the Office of the State’s Attorneys 

Appellate Prosecutor is duly appointed to act as Special Prosecutor in the County of 
Winnebago by a court having jurisdiction to do so, the County will provide reasonable 
and necessary clerical and administrative support on an as-needed basis. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago hereby agrees to participate in the service program of the Office of the State’s 
Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor for Fiscal Year 2021, commencing December 1, 2020 
and ending November 30, 2021, by hereby appropriating the sum of $42,000.00 as 
consideration for the express purpose of providing apportion of the funds required for 
financing the operation of the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor and 
agrees to deliver the same to the Office of the State’s Attorneys Appellate Prosecutor on 
request during the Fiscal Year 2021. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 

authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago 
County State’s Attorney and to the Director of the Office of the State’s Attorneys 
Appellate Prosecutor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
      Finance Committee 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the  
 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, on the ______ day of _________________, 2020. 
 
 

 
      ___________________________________ 

  Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Chairman of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 





 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



 

  Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
Prepared By:  Debbie Crozier 
Committee:    Operations and Administration  
Committee Date:   December 17, 2020 
Resolution Title:  Resolution for Approval for Stop-Loss Insurance   
Board Meeting Date:   December 22, 2020 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                          Appropriation Amount: Additional $396,050/year 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  48500-43171     Budget Impact:  

 
 
Background Information:  Winnebago County purchases stop loss coverage to limit the County’s risk on 
the group insurance plan both on an individual and group basis.  Our stop loss coverage has been with Voya 
Financial since January 1, 2020.  The 2021 renewal is a 29% increase on the specific coverage and an 11.55% 
increase on the aggregate coverage.    Gallagher Williams Manny sent the stop loss proposal to five carriers 
requesting a quote, due to large number of ongoing claims the carriers chose not to provide a quote.   
 
Our annual stop loss premium is approximately $1,366,600; in 2021, the average annual stop loss premium 
will be approximately $1,762,050, an increase of $396,050.  The increase is due to our 2020 high cost 
claims.   
 
Winnebago County and Human Resources have received excellent customer service and prompt 
payment from Voya Financial and Arthur J. Gallagher, and request the Boards support of 
continued services with this vendor.  
 
Recommendation:   The Operations and Administrative Committee, chaired by Keith McDonald has 
reviewed the resolution presented to the Board.  The Board is asked to vote in favor of the Committee’s 
recommendation at its December 22, 2020 meeting. 
 
Contract/Agreement:   This contract is a 1-year agreement with Voya Financial.  
 
Legal Review:  Requested contract for the States Attorney to review. 
 
Follow-Up:   The premium is paid monthly based on enrollment. 
 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  December 22, 2020  
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
   

2020 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH VOYA FINANCIAL FOR 
STOP LOSS SPECIFIC AND AGGREGATE COVERAGE ON THE SELF-INSURED CO-PAY/POS AND HIGH 

DEDUCTIBLE MEDICAL PLANS.  
 

  

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, offers a self-insured Co-Pay/POS and High 
Deductible medical plans to active employees and retirees; the County purchases a stop loss 
insurance plan to reinsure the County for medical claims which exceed $175,000 (per individual) 
and on an aggregate basis; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County’s Benefit Consultant has reviewed submitted proposals for the stop 
loss coverage in 2021; and the  

 
WHEREAS, the County’s Benefit Consultant recommends renewing with Voya Financial in 

2021; and,     
 
 WHEREAS, Sun Life has proposed the following rates to Winnebago County for stop loss 
coverage in 2021: 

$81.74 for Specific per individual coverage per month 
$216.16 for Specific per family coverage per month 

This is a 28.92% increase from the 2020 rates. 
$2.80 for Aggregate per employee per month 

This is a 11.55% increase from the 2020 rates. 
This is will be a $396,050 increase from 2020. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the renewal and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with Voya Financial for the stop loss coverage for the self-
insured Co-Pay/POS and HDHP medical plans for the year  January 1, 2021 through December 31, 
2021.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
effective January 1, 2020 with Voya Financial, 230 Park Avenue, New York, NY 10169, for stop loss 
coverage.   
   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human 
Resources and the County Auditor. 
 
 



 
    Respectfully Submitted, 

 OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

  KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2020. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 

















 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 

















































 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: December 22, 2020 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 
1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission 

the following: 
 

a. Summary of November 13, 2020, Meeting with Exelon Generation Company, LLC 
Regarding a Planned Request for an Alternative to Certain Documentation 
Requirements for the Replacement of Pressure Retaining Bolting (EPID L-2020-
LRM-0102)  

 
b. Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2 – Exemption from Annual Force-on-Force Exercise 

Requirements of 10 CFR Part 73, Appendix B, “General Criteria for Security 
Personnel,” Subsection VI.C.3(I)(1) (EPID L-2020-LLE-0199) [COVID-19] 

 

c. Exelon Generation Company, LLC – Request for an Alternative to Use ASME Code 
Case N-893 (epidS l-2020-llr-0147 and L-2020-LLR-0148) 

 

d. Exelon Generation Company, LLC – Alternative Request for Documentation of 
Replacement of Pressure Retaining Bolting.  

 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago County 
Treasurer the Investment Report as of December 2020. 

 
3. County Clerk Gummow received Certificates of Liability Insurance for the following: 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
a.         Comcast of Illinois/Indiana/Ohio, LLC 

 
b.         Gaskill & Walton Construction 

 
c.          Stepping Stone of Rockford, Inc 

  

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

Adjournment – 
Next Meeting 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Executive Summary
	Resolution Authorizing County Contribution for SA's Appellate Prosecutor's Program
	Letter from SA Appellate Prosecutor's Office
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Executive Summary
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Renewal Agreement with Voya Financial
	Stop Loss Insurance Renewal Offer
	Public Works Committee
	Resolution 20-043
	Resolution 20-044
	Resolution 20-045
	Resolution 20-046
	Resolution 20-047
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment - Next Meeting



